
Posted on 09/26/2023 at 2:30 pm 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

SHEBOYGAN COUNTY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 

September 28, 2023       3:00 P.M.  
 

Administration Building 
508 New York Ave 

Sheboygan WI 53081 
Room 302 

 
 
 
 

*AGENDA* 
 
 
Call to Order 
 
Certification of Compliance with Open Meeting Law 
 
Correspondence 
 
Approval of Minutes for the August 21, 2023 Executive Committee Meeting 
 
Consideration of Resolution No. 09 - Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of $10,990,000 General 
Obligation Promissory Notes 
 
Consideration of Resolution No. 11 - Accepting Donation of Property to be Added to Sheboygan 
County Broughton Marsh 
 
Consideration of Ordinance No. 06 - Amending Chapter 4 - Investment Policy and Procedures 
 
Consideration of Resolution No. - Approving the Use of American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funds 
(No. 8) 
 
County Administrator’s Report 
(The County Administrator’s Report is a summary of key activities. No action will be taken by the 
Executive Committee resulting from the report, unless it is a specific item on the agenda.) 
 
Consideration and Approval of Attendance at Other Meetings/Functions 
 
Review and Approve Vouchers 
 
Next Meeting Date: To Be Determined 
    
Adjournment 
 
 
Prepared by:   
Peggy Osthelder Vern Koch 
Recording Secretary Committee Chairperson 
 
 
 
 



Posted on 09/26/2023 at 2:30 pm 

 

NOTE: Members of the public are invited to offer comments on topics which may or may not appear on the Agenda, and Committee members 
may discuss such matters, but no action may be taken by the Committee on non-Agenda topics.  Individual speakers may be limited to no 
more than five minutes.    
 
A majority of the members of the County Board of Supervisors or of any of its committees may be present at this meeting to listen, observe 
and participate. If a majority of any such body is present, their presence constitutes a "meeting" under the Open Meeting Law as interpreted 
in State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, 173 Wis. 2d 553 (1993), even though the visiting body will take no action at this meeting.   
 
If listed as an agenda item, the “Administrator’s Report” is a summary of key activities for the previous month and planned for upcoming 
months including performance evaluations, liaison committee issues and County Board issues.  No action will be taken by the Executive 
committee resulting from the report unless it is a specific item on the agenda.  
 
Persons with disabilities needing assistance to attend or participate are asked to notify the County Board Chairman/County Administrator’s 
Office at 920-459-3103 prior to the meeting so that accommodations may be arranged. 



SHEBOYGAN COUNTY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 

Administration Building 
508 New York Ave 

Sheboygan, WI 53081 
Room 302 

 

 
August 21, 2023 Called to Order: 3:01 PM Adjourned: 3:57 PM 

 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:        Vernon Koch, Keith Abler, William Goehring, Edward Procek, and Curt 

Brauer 
 
ALSO PRESENT:               Christina Singh, Supervisor Roger Te Stroete, Crystal Fieber, Steve 

Hatton, Brenda Hanson, Aaron Brault, Stefanie Albrecht, Alayne Krause, 
and Peggy Osthelder 

   
 
Chairman Koch called the meeting to order at 3:01 PM.  Peggy Osthelder certified compliance with the 
open meeting law.  The meeting notice was posted at 3:00 PM on August 17, 2023. 
 
There was no correspondence to present to the Committee. 
 
Supervisor Goehring made a motion to approve the minutes of the July 27, 2023 Executive 
Committee Meeting.  Motion seconded by Supervisor Brauer.  Motion carried.   
 
The Committee reviewed Resolution No. 07 – 2024 Five-Year Capital Plan.  Financial Analyst Stefanie 
Albrecht gave an overview and answered questions.  The Committee discussed the history of the 
County’s borrowing.  Supervisor Brauer made a motion to approve the resolution.  Motion seconded 
by Supervisor Abler.  Motion carried. 
 
The Committee reviewed the Amsterdam Dunes Wetland Mitigation Bank Credit Sale.  Planning & 
Conservation Director Aaron Brault gave an overview and answered questions.  Supervisor Procek 
made a motion to approve the credit sale.  Motion seconded by Supervisor Goehring.  Motion carried. 
 
The Committee reviewed the agreement for Awarding $185,000 to Boys & Girls Clubs of Sheboygan 
County, Inc. for the Childcare Taskforce Programs.  Financial Analyst Stefanie Albrecht gave an 
overview and answered questions.  Supervisor Goehring made a motion to approve the agreement.  
Motion seconded by Supervisor Procek.  Motion carried. 
 
The Committee reviewed the County Board 2024 Proposed Budget.  County Administrator Alayne 
Krause gave an overview and answered questions.  Supervisor Abler made a motion to approve the 
proposed budget.  Motion seconded by Supervisor Brauer.  Motion carried. 
 
The Committee reviewed the County Administrator 2024 Proposed Budget.  County Administrator 
Alayne Krause gave an overview and answered questions.  Supervisor Procek made a motion to 
approve the proposed budget.  Motion seconded by Supervisor Brauer.  Motion carried. 
 
The Committee reviewed 2nd Quarter Variance Reports.  County Administrator Alayne Krause gave an 
overview and answered questions.  Supervisor Abler made a motion to approve the Variance Reports.  
Motion seconded by Supervisor Brauer.  Motion carried. 
 
County Administrator Alayne Krause reported on the upcoming onboarding of a new Human Resources 



Director and Assistant Building Services Director.  Administrator Krause also provided an update on 
the 2024 Budget Development process, the health insurance renewal process, and the preparations 
for the 2024 benefits open enrollment.  Administrator Krause then reported on the current RSVP 
numbers for the All Employee Appreciation Picnic.  Additionally, Administrator Krause commended 
Corporation Counsel’s efforts in regard to the anticipated purchase of the fixed-base operator at the 
airport.  Finally, Administrator Krause reported on recent meetings and events with local community 
partners. 
 
Vouchers were reviewed.  Supervisor Procek made a motion to approve the vouchers.  Motion 
seconded by Supervisor Brauer.  Motion carried. 
 

The next Executive Committee meeting is scheduled for Thursday, September 28 at 3:00 PM. 
 
Supervisor Brauer made a motion to adjourn.  Motion seconded by Supervisor Goehring.  Motion 
carried. 

 
 
 

Peggy Osthelder, Recording Secretary  William Goehring, Secretary 































 

 

 SHEBOYGAN COUNTY     RESOLUTION NO. ______ (2023/24) 1 
 2 
 Re: Approving Use of American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funds (No. 8) 3 
 4 
 WHEREAS, on March 11, 2021, the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) was signed into 5 
law, and 6 
 7 
 WHEREAS, ARPA established the coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 8 
(SLFRF) program to provide $350 Billion of support to state, territorial, local, and tribal 9 
governments in responding to the economic and public health impacts of COVID-19, and 10 
 11 
 WHEREAS, Sheboygan County received approximately $22 million in SLFRF funds 12 
through ARPA, and 13 
 14 
 WHEREAS, U.S. Treasury's Final Rule allows for the use of ARPA funds to respond to 15 
the COVID-19 public health emergency or its negative economic impacts; for the provision of 16 
government services to the extent of the reduction in revenue due to the COVID-19 public health 17 
emergency; and to make necessary investments in water, sewer, or broadband infrastructure, 18 
and 19 
 20 
 WHEREAS, the Sheboygan County Clerk’s Office has identified the need for new election 21 
equipment; and 22 
 23 
 WHEREAS, the Sheboygan County Health and Human Services Department has 24 
identified the need to provide funding to the Open Door Drop-In Center, which provides recovery 25 
and support services for adults with mental illness; and  26 
 27 
 WHEREAS, Rocky Knoll has identified the continued need for wage increases, shift 28 
differentials, Sign-on bonuses, tuition reimbursement and advertising in order to recruit and retain 29 
staff to continue to provide high quality, skilled nursing and healthcare services to Sheboygan 30 
County residents; and 31 
 32 
 WHEREAS, in preparation of the 2024 budget, county staff identified capital outlay 33 
projects and departmental tax levy requests, reflected in the table below, that are appropriate 34 
expenditures under the U.S. Treasury rule and which could not be accommodated under the 2024 35 
tax levy. 36 
 37 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Sheboygan County Board of 38 
Supervisors has determined that a portion of Sheboygan County's ARPA SLFRF funds shall be 39 
used for the following eligible expenses as detailed in the following chart: 40 
 41 

Description 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total Cost 

County Clerk - New Election Equipment $288,000         $         288,000  

HHS - Open Door Drop-In Center    $175,000       $         175,000  

Rocky Knoll - Wage Increases ($1 CNA, 
$2 LPN, $3 RN)    $252,000       $         252,000  



 

 
2 

Description 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total Cost 
Rocky Knoll - Shift Differential 
(CNA,LPN)    $  52,000       $           52,000  

Rocky Knoll - Sign-on Bonus (CNA, LPN, 
RN)    $  30,000       $           30,000  

Rocky Knoll - Tuition Reimbursement    $    9,000       $             9,000  

Rocky Knoll - Advertising    $    7,000       $             7,000  

Capital Outlay - 2024 Budget            

UW-GB Sheboygan Campus – Phy Ed 
Building Water line replacement    $  25,000       $           25,000  

UW-GB Sheboygan Campus - Roof 
Repair Projects    $  16,250       $           16,250  

Sheriff - Headset    $    6,000       $             6,000  

Sheriff - Night vision headset and 
helmet mounts    $  24,000       $           24,000  

Sheriff - Bi-Directional Amplifier    $  20,000       $           20,000  

Building Services - Air Conditioning for 
Courthouse Front Lobby    $  16,000       $           16,000  

Rocky Knoll - 2- Vital sign Monitors    $    7,200       $             7,200  

Rocky Knoll - 9 - Bariatric Beds    $  18,900       $           18,900  

Rocky Knoll - Lift - Sit to Stand    $  11,800       $           11,800  

Rocky Knoll - Washer - 60lb capacity    $  20,800       $           20,800  

Rocky Knoll - V-Plow    $    8,300       $             8,300  

Rocky Knoll - Labeling Machine    $    2,500       $             2,500  

Rocky Knoll - DR Pro 330 Leaf Vacuum    $    2,700       $             2,700  

IT - Hard drive disks for backup server    $  25,000       $           25,000  

Additional Levy Request - 2024 Budget           

County Clerk - Even year Election 
supplies and publications    $  33,000       $           33,000  

Building Services - Print shop carpet    $    4,800       $             4,800  

Building Services - Courthouse 4th Floor 
Men's Restroom retiling    $    6,050       $             6,050  

Building Services - Replace security 
cameras    $    3,000       $             3,000  

            

      

Total ARPA Requests  $288,000   $776,300  $     -   $   -   $  1,064,300  

 42 
These are forecasted amounts.  ARPA Funds allocated will be adjusted to actual incurred. 43 
 44 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the 2024 allocations noted in the above chart shall be 45 
incorporated into the 2024 budget. 46 
 47 



 

 
3 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Department liaison committee and Executive 48 
Committee have authority to approve any changes to the specific use of ARPA funds contained 49 
within the same budget appropriation unit; in the alternative, any change to the above allocation 50 
requiring an amendment to the department budget shall follow the normal and customary budget 51 
amendment process as outlined in the County Code. 52 
 53 
 54 
Respectfully submitted this 24th day of October, 2023. 55 
 56 
 57 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 58 
 59 
 60 
              61 
Vernon Koch, Chairperson    Keith Abler, Vice-Chairperson 62 
 63 
              64 
William C. Goehring, Secretary   Curt Brauer 65 
 66 
              67 
       Edward J. Procek 68 
 69 

Opposed to Introduction: 70 
 71 
              72 
R:\CLIENT\08299\00012\00217896.DOCX 73 


